
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
www.pwb.wa.gov 

 

 

AGENDA 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING 
March 18, 2016 – 9:00 am 

  

 

Meeting Location: Dept. of Commerce, Columbia River Room, Bldg 5, 1st Floor, 1011 Plum ST SE, Olympia, WA 98504 

Agenda Item Action Page Time 

 

A) ADMINISTRATION    

1. Call to Order: Stan Finkelstein   9:00 

2. Welcome and Introductions   9:02 

3. Approve Agenda: Cecilia Gardener Action 1 9:05 

4. Introduction of New Members: Stan Finkelstein  5 9:10 

5. Meeting Minutes for February 5, 2016: Barbara Smith  Action 9 9:20 

6. Executive Director Update: Cecilia Gardener Informational 19 9:25 

7. Department of Commerce Update: Mark Barkley Verbal  9:35 

B) CONTRACTING    

1. PWAA Quarterly Contract Report: Jacquie Andresen Informational 23 9:40 

2. DWSRF Quarterly Contract Report: Jill Nordstrom Informational 25 9:50 

3. DWSRF Loan Extension – Sammamish Plateau: Jill Nordstrom Action 27 10:00 

4. DWSRF 3rd Loan List: Janet Cherry and Mike Copeland Action 29 10:15 

BREAK   10:45 

C) POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT    

1. Legislative Session Update: Cecilia Gardener Verbal  11:10 

2. Attorney General Discussion: Cecilia Gardener 
Possible 
Action  11:20 

D) INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS    

1. Board Committee Updates Verbal  11:40 

2. Board Member Updates Verbal  11:50 

Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 12:00 pm 

NEXT BUSINESS MEETING SCHEDULED: April 1, 2016, at the Department of Commerce, Olympia, WA. 
 
Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA 98504-2525.  
Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-2744 for further information. 
 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request, and is also posted on our website at: www.pwb.wa.gov. Meetings 
sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be accessible to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 
10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at (360) 725-2744. 

 

1

http://www.pwb.wa.gov/
http://www.pwb.wa.gov/


2



 
 

3



4



Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
DATE:  March 10, 2016 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Cecilia Gardener, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Introducing Three New Public Works Board Members 
 
 
We are pleased to announce the appointment of three new members to the Public Works Board: 
 

Lisa Ayers 
Position #5, Representing County Elected Officials, Term ends 06/30/2019 

Lisa Ayers grew up in Woodland, Washington. She went to work for the Pacific County 
Commissioners in 2004 as the county’s Management and Fiscal Analyst. She was elected 
to her first term as Pacific County Commissioner District #3 in 2010, and re-elected in 
2014. Prior to her county employment, she served as assistant to the City of Raymond 
Public Works Director. As a military spouse, living on both coasts, Lisa has had diverse 
experience opportunities from waiting tables to running heavy equipment. Lisa has Associates’ degrees in 
Computer Science and Accounting. She served on the Governor’s Blue Ribbon Panel on Ocean Acidification, and 
is currently a member of the Washington Association of Counties Legislative Steering Committee and an 
executive committee member of the Washington Counties Risk Pool.  
 
This year will mark her 35th anniversary married to her high school sweetheart. She has two daughters and five 
grandchildren. 
 

KC Kuykendall 
Position #1, Representing City Elected Officials, Term ends 06/30/2019 

KC Kuykendall is a seasoned business professional, active in community and economic 
development initiatives in southeast Washington. He lives in Waitsburg and has spent 
the last twenty-plus years in technology development and deployment, infrastructure 
engineering, strategic planning, master planning, economic development, and Energy 
systems engineering across the U.S. and internationally. 
 
KC is an Oregon State University graduate in Mechanical Engineering, and completed his graduate work at 
University of Colorado in Environmental Policy and Law. He serves on Waitsburg’s City Council and the Board of 
Directors for the Association of Washington Cities (District 2), as well as the Walla Walla County Planning 
Commission, and several Corporate Boards. 
  

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 18, 2016 
Board meeting  

 

5



Page 2 of 2 

Public Works Board 
Re: Introducing Three New Public Works Board Members 
March 10, 2016 

 
 
 

Steve Misiurak, PE 
Position #3, Representing City Public Works, Term ends 06/30/2019 

Stephen Misiurak was born in Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada and has worked at the City 
of Gig Harbor as the City Engineer since 2000. Prior to Gig Harbor, Steve worked as a 
civil engineer at the City of Bremerton and prior to that he was a utility engineer at a 
local municipal water district in Malibu Canyon. Steve earned his Bachelor of Science 
degree at California State University Northridge in 1990. 
 
Steve is also a registered Professional Engineer in the State of Washington. He is a dual citizen and is married 
with two children, each of whom are attending the University of British Columbia, Canada. As a true Canadian, 
Steve is a long time and avid Ice Hockey fan. He also enjoys outdoor recreational camping and he travels many 
times each year back to Canada. 

6



Rev: 03/08/2016 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENT DATES 
Revised: March 8, 2016 

 

Member Name Position # Region Appointed Term Begin Term End Position Description 

Finkelstein, Stan  
(Chair) 

13 Puget Sound 7/1/2013 7/1/2013 
Serves at the 
Pleasure of the 
Governor 

General Public 

Baldwin, JC (Janet)  
(Vice Chair) 

11 Northeast 6/28/2013 7/1/2013 6/30/2017 General Public 

Ayers, Lisa 5 Southwest 02/24/2016 02/24/2016 06/30/2019 County Elected Official 

Carter, Pam 8 Puget Sound 10/3/2013 10/4/2013 6/30/2017 Sewer & Water District Elected Official 

Cummins, Jerry 2 Southeast 6/28/2013 7/1/2013 6/30/2017 City Elected Official 

Haugen, Mary Margaret 10 Northwest 4/18/2014 4/18/2014 6/30/2017 General Public 

Hutsell, Scott 4 Northeast 7/25/2012 7/25/2012 6/30/2016 County Elected Official 

Kuykendall, K.C. 1 Southeast 03/08/2016 03/08/2016 06/30/2019 City Elected Official 

Misiurak, Steve 3 Puget Sound 02/24/2016 02/24/2016 06/30/2019 City Public Works Manager 

Pottinger, Diane 7 Puget Sound 10/3/2013 10/4/2013 6/30/2017 Sewer & Water District Public Works Manager 

Rasmussen, Matt 6 Southeast 10/3/2013 10/4/2013 6/30/2017 County Public Works Manager  

Scott, Bubba (Mark) 9 Northeast 6/28/2013 7/1/2013 6/30/2017 Public Utility Districts Association Nominee 

Wellman, Lisa 12 Puget Sound 4/18/2014 02/24/2016 06/30/2019 General Public 
 

The Board is comprised of thirteen members who are appointed by the governor for terms of four years. It includes: 

 Two elected officials and one public works manager from a list of at least six people nominated by the Association of Washington Cities.  

 Two elected officials and one public works manager from a list of at least six people nominated by the Washington State Association of 
Counties. 

 Three members appointed from a list of at least six people nominated jointly by the Washington Public Utility District Association and a state 
association of water-sewer districts. 

 Four members appointed from the general public, with geographical composition and expertise in relevant fields taken into consideration. The 
governor appoints one of the general public members of the board as chair; the term of the chair coincides with the term of the governor. 

 

7



8



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 1 of 9 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 5, 2016 

Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA  98504 

Board Members 
Guests Present: Staff Present: 

Present: Absent: 

Stan Finkelstein, Chair  Blair Burroughs, Washington 
Association of Sewer & Water Districts 
(Via phone) 

Cecilia Gardener, 
Executive Director JC Baldwin  

Pam Carter  Jacquie Andresen 

Jerry Cummins  Janet Cherry, Department of Health Mark Barkley 

Mary Margaret Haugen  Mike Copeland, Department of Health Carrie Calleja 

Scott Hutsell  Dave Dunn, Department of Ecology Ann Campbell 

Diane Pottinger  Dennis Hewitt, Department of Health Cindy Chavez 

Matt Rasmussen  Karen Klocke, Department of Health Isaac Huang 

Bubba Scott  John Kounts, Washington Public Utility 
Districts Association 

Jill Nordstrom 

Lisa Wellman  Rodney Orr 

  Steve Lindstrom, Sno-King Water 
District Coalition 

Cathi Read 

  Connie Robins 

  Steve Misiurak, City of Gig Harbor Barbara Smith 

 
A. ADMINISTRATION 

1) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 8:03 am.  

2) Welcome and Introductions.  

3) ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve the agenda as presented. Scott Hutsell seconded the 
motion. MOTION APPROVED 8-0 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, 
and Wellman). 

4) ACTION: Pam Carter moved to approve the December 11, 2015, meeting minutes as presented. 
Jerry Cummins seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 8-0 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, Hutsell, 
Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman).  

5) Executive Director Update: Cecilia Gardener briefed the Board on recent activities. She created a 
new document for this meeting, the Executive Director Update of Activities. This gives the Board an 
indicator of just how busy the remaining staff are. If you like this document, I can continue to 
provide this. In particular I want to discuss this morning’s hearing. HB 2146 was reintroduced this 
year. Ann Campbell and Cecilia Gardener met with legislators and asked them to re-introduce the 
bill. You’ve been given a synopsis of the bill via email. All of the Board members stated that they 
were in support of the bill, though some have concerns regarding the interest rate setting 
methodology. The Board is in favor of Kochmar’s amendment, but it is unclear whether or not it will 
get a hearing. After speaking with Stan Finkelstein, we’ve decided that he and I are going to sign in 
and testify in support of the bill. I’d like the rest of you to sign in electronically and show your 
support.  
 

9



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 2 of 9 

Lisa Wellman asked about other people’s concerns. Diane Pottinger responded that it’s frustrating 
that the utility tax money that has been set aside for the Public Works Assistance Account has been 
sent elsewhere. Her utility board discussed this, and they are unhappy about this. 
 
Pam Carter had a question about the $10 million limit for one applicant; how often do large dollar 
amount projects occur? Cecilia Gardener responded that historically Board projects average $2.5 
million. Wastewater treatment projects are very expensive as are multi-jurisdictional projects like 
the Tacoma pipeline.  Those types of projects have multiple funding partners due to programmatic 
dollar amount limitations. The limit will not cause difficulties for the Board’s average applicant.  It 
adds a layer of complexity to larger projects, but for the average applicant’s project, there will be no 
impact. The bill requires the Board to present a loan list to the legislature for possible funding every 
year, regardless of funds. This is frustrating to both clients and the staff.  
 
Cecilia Gardener responded that the Board is directed to produce a loan list for legislative 
consideration by November1, 2016, no guarantee of funding; there are rumors that the public works 
assistance account loan payments are going to be used for non-Public Works Board programs again 
in the 2017-19 biennium. Diane Pottinger replied that paying $4 to $5 thousand by each jurisdiction 
to prepare an application with nothing to show for it is extremely frustrating. Gardener responded 
that we have no certainty of receiving funding. Mary Margaret Haugen responded that the 
legislature made a mistake. They didn’t understand. We should ask them to reconsider this. Stan 
Finkelstein replied that if everyone understands there’s a $4-$5 thousand cost, with no likelihood of 
getting funded, they are going to decline to apply; the legislature is going to see no applicants and 
think there’s no demand for the money. 
 
Scott Hutsell asked whether or not the water and sewer projects would need to go to the State 
Revolving Funds first? Cecilia Gardener replied that no, this particular bill allows us to fund water 
and sewer projects. We would work with the Departments of Health and Ecology to package these, 
where we could work together to achieve project outcomes. According to this bill, we would be 
allowed to fund water and sewer, even if they are eligible for funding from Health and Ecology. We 
are required, however, to develop policies to maximize the use of federal resources.  
 
Mary Margaret Haugen stated that we should have three people sitting up there testifying, and I 
think Diane Pottinger – being on the ground – would give compelling testimony. Diane Pottinger 
replied that we sent all this money to Olympia, thinking it would help with projects and it didn’t. It 
infuriates me and several members of my Board. Cecilia Gardener responded that as staff, she 
doesn’t have impact with the committee. They will listen to Board Members far more than they will 
listen to me. They also give more attention to elected officials. Diane Pottinger agreed with that, and 
pointed out they give more attention to Scott Hutsell than to her. Haugen responded that the more 
real people you have, the more impressive it is. Real citizens are far more effective than any 
lobbyist.  
 
Stan Finkelstein responded that only a portion of the utility tax is allocated to the Public Works 
Assistance Account (PWAA). Only 40% of that total was supposed to be sent to the PWAA. The city 
utility tax was always a means of funding general government.  
 

10



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 3 of 9 

Lisa Wellman spoke about the language in the bill concerning a comprehensive report. I liked the 
idea of a report every four years; on the other hand the word comprehensive is upsetting. Cecilia 
Gardener replied that we would have to request additional funds to do that report. In 1999, the last 
time the Board did such a report, it cost a million dollars. We should do something digitally, but that 
is down the road. Stan Finkelstein responded that there is a deep hole in that section, when it 
speaks of infrastructure. It is not limited to those things that we fund. Gardener replied that we 
would need to be clear with legislators as to what the term infrastructure entailed.  
 
Cecilia Gardener asked if there is anyone else wanting to testify today? Stan Finkelstein replied that 
he will do a brief opening, and that Diane Pottinger and Scott Hutsell will testify. Gardener asked if 
anyone present in the audience of the Board meeting wanted to comment on the bill. John Kounts 
from the Washington Public Utility Districts Association (WPUDA) stated that he will be testifying 
“Supportive with concerns.” Blair Burroughs from the Washington Association of Water and Sewer 
Districts stated that he believes Scott Hazelgrove will be providing input, but was unsure if he’s 
testifying.  
 
Cecilia Gardener turned to the two additional documents each Board member received. SB 5624 is a 
striker from last year. It is fundamentally different from the 2015 version. These are going to be 
loans to smaller jurisdictions unable to go to the bond market on their own due to costs and 
complexities. The proposed program would be funded with proceeds from the issuance of tax-
exempt bonds. Stan Finkelstein stated that the program is a pooling mechanism. The state would be 
a consolidator. State resources are not pledged to secure this program. Pam Carter responded that 
Senator Mullet asked her if it was even legal. Finkelstein replied that he thinks it is legal. Gardener 
declared that staff will keep the Board informed as the bill moves forward.  

6) Department of Commerce Indirect: Connie Robins, the Deputy Director of the Department of 
Commerce, gave an update to the Board on the new indirect rate. A review of the proposed rate 
was done. The proposed rate outlined at the December meeting is the rate that Commerce has put 
forward for HUD consideration. The current rate is 30% on salaries and benefits. The new rate is a 
maximum of 20% on salaries and benefits; but is more likely to be 18.9%.  There will be a 0.25% 
charge on pass-through money such as loan draws. The indirect rate is set annually and then 
adjusted to reflect actual expenses. We don’t over collect – it’s not allowable. This proposal went to 
HUD on 12/31/2015. They have 6 months to get back to us with questions. They send it around to 
various federal agencies for commentary during this period. We have an implementation date of 
July 1. While we’re waiting for the HUD review process results, we have established a working group 
with the programs to identify the implementation ramifications when the new rate takes effect on 
July 1.  
 
Stan Finkelstein sought clarification of the potential impacts to the Board’s existing loan 
commitments. Connie Robins replied that the actual calculation is based on expenditures.  The rate 
will be charged to loan draws for projects that are in process. Cindy Chavez estimated that there is 
between $40 and $50 million in loan draws that will go out over the rest of the biennium. These 
draws would be charged the 0.25% rate. Finkelstein replied that this makes the agency far more 
vulnerable. 0.25% of zero is zero. Robins replied that there is quite a bit of vulnerability to this 
proposal in that pass-through money waxes and wanes. At the agency level it normalizes.  We may 
not have as much in Public Works Board, but we have more in Housing & Essential Needs.  

11



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 4 of 9 

7) Department of Commerce Update: Mark Barkley briefed the Board on recent activities. This short 
session has been way busier than the last session. CERB has also been busy. The newly assigned unit 
– Community Capital Facilities – also has many irons in the fire. We are setting the groundwork for 
the next biennium. This is a preview of more to come.  

 

B. CONTRACTING 

1) DWSRF Ritzville Time Extension Request:  Jill Nordstrom presented a time extension request to 
December 31, 2017 from the City of Ritzville, Contract No. DM11-952-032, for their Water Supply 
and Storage Improvements project. The Project has two phases. The first phase includes drilling a 
new well and construction of a pump station. The second phase includes renovation of a water 
reservoir. Phase I is complete, pending the repair/replacement of a defective pump, which the City 
is currently using legal measures to resolve. Phase II is delayed due to the legal issues of Phase I 
being resolved. The project is 65% complete. The Department of Health and Local Government 
Division staff support the time extension. 
Scott Hutsell asked if there a reasonable expectation that this will get done? Jill Nordstrom replied, 
yes, the client feels this is due to the general contractor’s installation of a defective pump and they 
feel certain this will be resolved within this new timeframe. The insurance companies are involved in 
this, and they are hopeful for a full settlement.  
 
Mary Margaret Haugen stated that she thinks lead pipes, like in Flint, MI, are a real issue in this 
state. Jerry Cummins responded that he’s got lead pipe in his jurisdiction. It’s a bad deal. We’re 
doing the best we can. That’s why we need a Public Works Assistance Account. Scott Hutsell 
responded that we’re all on a race to the bottom for water. The water that they’re pumping out of 
Davenport is 25,000 years old. And that’s not getting recharged. This is what’s happening with 
municipal areas. Pam Carter replied that Flint was pumping questionable water, which reacted with 
the lead in the pipes. Lisa Wellman responded that as a member of the public, she appreciates the 
discussion with people who are in the industry. Haugen pointed out that TVW will broadcast the 
hearing. She thinks you should make your case – the people are watching.  
 
ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve the time extension request for Ritzville as presented. 
Matt Rasmussen seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, 
Haugen, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman). 

2) DWSRF Second Loan List:  Janet Cherry and Mike Copeland from the Department of Health 
presented the second DWSRF loan list to the Board. Cherry explained how projects were selected 
for this list. The Board was asked if they have any recusals. It was clarified that College Place is not in 
Walla Walla, so Jerry Cummins did not need to recuse himself from the vote.  
 
Mike Copeland explained the two credit memos that were attached to the list. Greater Bar needs an 
additional $200,000 to complete their project. They only have 3 people on their board, 2 of whom 
are resigning. As a condition of the loan approval, we need to make sure they have the folks in place 
to manage the rest of the construction process. Copeland feels they will need to look for additional 
consolidation or selling the system. We’ve put a number of caveats and conditions for approval on 
this. Jill Nordstrom stated that Jon Galow is working with them, to make sure they maintain 
capacity. Janet Cherry stated that there is a compliance issue here; the project needs to be 

12



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 5 of 9 

completed. They went to bid last summer, and due to the fires, their bid results were very high. 
They rebid, and it’s still over budget. They need this additional $200,000 to complete the project. 
Stan Finkelstein asked about the two resigning commissioners. Who will sign the contract? Copeland 
responded that they haven’t resigned yet. Cherry added that we’re in touch with Douglas County. 
Finkelstein asked about the size of the system. Karen Klocke replied that there are about 125 
connections, with 150 connections planned for after the project is completed. Finkelstein observed 
that this will be a big rate increase. Cherry agreed, about $50. Finkelstein stated that he’s worried 
about the affordability index. Mary Margaret Haugen stated that a lot of legislators don’t know that 
if these little utilities default, then the county has to assume the operations. Finkelstein replied that 
the county becomes responsible, but he doesn’t think it has to pay. Haugen responded that it’s the 
law. Bubba Scott asked Copeland to identify the compliance issue. Copeland explained that the 
original loan was for $2.7 million to consolidate five smaller private water systems. Cherry added 
that they needed an additional reliable source of water.  
 
Jerry Cummins asked about the College Place project. It is a neighboring jurisdiction to him. You 
show $2.2 million going to a small non-denominational church? Karen Klocke responded that the 
church is not going to repay, that College Place is taking over. The church was only able to have 
water rights to the top aquifer. Due to past farming practices, there are high nitrates there. The 
church didn’t have the rights or money to go down deeper. Klocke talked to College Place, and they 
are willing to assume the system. But to do that, they need to drill a deeper well and loop the 
system. Because it’s a water quality system, and a school is impacted (a K-8 church school), they 
needed to get off the nitrate contaminated water source.  
 
Mike Copeland explained the details of the credit memo on Windolph. This is an exception to policy 
request. We don’t have three years of financials. It’s a small system that’s only been around since 
2014. Due to the drought, their source off water is gone. They are temporarily connected to a new 
source well. We put a number of caveats on this loan offer, because there isn’t enough historic 
financial data to make a comprehensive credit risk assessment 
 
ACTION: Diane Pottinger moved to approve the DWSRF second loan list as presented. Pam Carter 
seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 8-1 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hutsell, 
Pottinger, Rasmussen, and Scott). Wellman Opposed. 
 
Diane Pottinger asked Janet Cherry what the Department of Health has in funding for next year. 
Cherry replied $35 million, with a $3 million cap per jurisdiction. Some partial grants based on what 
we get from the Feds. They are encouraging applicants to go to USDA Rural Development. Pottinger 
replied that her jurisdiction – being urban – can’t go to USDA Rural Development. Dave Dunn 
offered that the Department of Ecology is offering $100 million in loans, but no grants. This is 
different than in years past. 

 

C. POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 

1) Online Training Initiative & Academies Update: Carrie Calleja spoke to Heather Winfrey. Calleja has 
postponed the invitation to the Subject Matter Experts (SME) meeting until Winfrey returns the 
signed contract. That was supposedly put in the mail yesterday. We are waiting for the contract to 

13



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 6 of 9 

be executed. Cecilia Gardener stated that her personal comfort level on this is waning. This project is 
not going in the direction originally intended. We are going to the SME meetings before we make a 
final decision. If the program development doesn’t move forward to serve its original intent, we are 
going to bring this conceptual program back to the Board with a recommendation to not move 
forward.  
 
Stan Finkelstein asked about the Evergreen Rural Water of Washington (ERWOW) discussion. Cecilia 
Gardener replied that we’re going to let the SME meeting happen first, and make a decision before 
starting the discussion with ERWOW. If the developing program with the community colleges 
doesn’t look like what the Board wanted, I’m going to recommend that we do not proceed. If we do 
not proceed, the resources could be given to ERWOW to pursue training at the local level. 
 
Bubba Scott asked if we have gotten our questions answered on how the money was to be spent. 
Cecilia Gardener replied that we have not received a response to our questions. We are going to 
wait for their actual proposal after the SME meetings. 

2) Discussion: Attorney General Opinion:  Ann Campbell presented on the Attorney General Opinion. 
The letter was accepted for review by the Attorney General’s Office (AGO); both the letter and their 
acceptance for review letter are in the Board packet; the request is still on the AGO website. The 
only comment received thus far is from a private citizen in the Tri-Cities area: “Of course, in their 
area of expertise!” The time frame is dependent on the AGO’s office. We’ll keep you posted. 
 
Cecilia Gardener informed the Board that the AGO is reorganizing and Kathryn Wyatt will no longer 
be our Assistant Attorney General (AAG). Stan Finkelstein and Gardener are meeting with the AGO 
next week to discuss the appointment of our new AAG. Sandra Adix, the Department’s AAG, has 
currently been assigned. She is also the attorney for CERB. CERB is an agency board rather than a 
governor-appointed board, so their circumstances are different. Gardener is advocating strongly 
that the PWB AAG be separate from the Department of Commerce’s AAG. 

3) Strategic Plan Work Update:  Cecilia Gardener updated the Board on the Strategic Plan work. As you 
remember, Rhys Roth, head of the Center for Sustainable Infrastructure, has pulled together a 
coalition group. It has all the association members and stakeholders in it. Gary Rowe from the 
Washington State Association of Counties is leading a subgroup that is working on a legislative piece. 
They are just getting that formed now. In 2008, the legislature required the Office of Financial 
Management (OFM) to do a report on infrastructure financing in Washington, and to make 
recommendations. Heather Moss did that report, so it’s commonly known as the Moss Report. The 
group thinks that the Moss Report is a good launching pad. That one page document I handed out is 
what Gary Rowe is peddling to get a modest amount of money to create a working group as outlined 
this report. It will have 8 legislators – 2 from each dominant caucus and chambers. OFM will be the 
overarching entity. It’s going in the same vein as the Board was going with its Strategic Planning 
effort. I recommend we join this coalition. This has a more global appeal than just the Public Works 
Board alone. This would replace our efforts. 
 
Diane Pottinger asked if we get a say on the questions that are asked. Cecilia Gardener responded 
yes. Blair Burroughs from the Washington Association of Sewer & Water Districts has also been in 
these meetings representing the Districts. You’ll notice that it says “Health, Ecology, and 

14



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 7 of 9 

Commerce.” I think the Board was not called out because we’re a polarizing subject. We will be 
participating as the Department of Commerce. Mary Margaret Haugen disagrees with this. We are 
separate from Commerce. I think we are more apt to be liked than the Department of Commerce. I 
say that because we’re made up of citizens. Haugen went on to state that she thinks the voice of the 
Board is more likely to be heard than the Department of Commerce. Scott Hutsell agreed with 
Haugen.  
 
Cecilia Gardener asked if the Board would like her to present this to the group, that the Board wants 
to be specifically identified, rather than being incorporated as the Department of Commerce. Pam 
Carter agreed. Lisa Wellman shared her perspective that there’s a certain amount of giving up of 
authority. It undercuts the responsibilities of the Board. Wellman clarified that if staff is 
participating, rather than a Board member, then that’s the Department of Commerce, not the Public 
Works Board. Mary Margaret Haugen affirmed that she wants the Board specifically identified. Stan 
Finkelstein asked if the Board is the only funder that is not individually identified in the work group. 
Gardener replied that the Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) is not identified. The 
Departments of Health and Ecology are specified, but TIB is not. This document is a draft. It’s 
evolving. I will tell the group that the Board wants to be identified by name and would like a Board 
member to be a part of the work group. Haugen stated that TIB needs to be a participant. Gardener 
replied that Steve Gorcester from TIB has been at all the meetings.  
 
Cecilia Gardener asked the Board to please review the Moss Report and provide commentary, fatal 
flaws, good ideas, etc.? I can bring those comments to the group.  
 

The Board meeting adjourned at 9:30 am so that Board Members and staff could attend the Public 
Hearing for HB 2146, and provide testimony. The Board meeting reconvened at 11:18 am.  

Strategic Plan Work Update, continued:  Cecilia Gardener stated that staff are working on Technical 
Assistance. Staff are building an Academy. We are working with the Departments of Health and 
Ecology, and Cathi Read from IACC to do half-day tech teams and half-day trainings. Jacquie 
Andresen added that we are planning for two events. We have one scheduled for May 3rd and 4th 
in Colville. We’re going to see how that one goes; if it’s well received, we will then schedule a 
second one in Ritzville around May 24th and 25th. The events will include 2 or 3 tech teams and 
training. Both days will have the same agenda; participants will get to choose which day works best 
for them. We are working on getting speakers confirmed. We have Growth Management, Small 
Communities Initiative, the Departments of Ecology and Health, and USDA Rural Development 
included in this. This is a great opportunity to work with other agencies, both state and federal. 
Scott Hutsell responded that it’s like a mini Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council (IACC) 
conference, which I think is super exciting. I especially like doing both the training and the tech 
teams together. Let’s test drive two of them and if there’s a lot of excitement for it, we might be 
able to do more in the future. We’re planning on two days because we are anticipating a lot of 
interest. Mark Barkley responded that some of these may be preliminary for a more fleshed out tech 
team at IACC.  
 
Stan Finkelstein asked if you will be using sponsors again. Jacquie Andresen replied that we are not 
right now. The Department of Ecology is helping us, and we have a small operating budget in-house. 

15



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 8 of 9 

Lisa Wellman replied that she encourages you to bring the suppliers into the conversation, whether 
you need sponsors or not.  
 
Diane Pottinger stated that the Pacific Northwest section of the American Water Works Association 
will be meeting in Boise on May 4th and 5th, so you might want to push those folks to the May 24th 
and 25th dates.  
 

4) Legislative Session Update: Cecilia Gardener pointed out the bill tracking sheet in the Board packet. 
The really big bills were HB 2146, that you testified on today, and the other one is this new bond bill 
that’s come back in another form. As for SB 6517, it’s not wholly relevant since we have great 
gender diversity on both the Public Works Board and CERB. There is nothing here about racial 
diversity, but that will be coming in the future. Ann Campbell responded that it’s not hard to comply 
with this. We need to do outreach. We need to post positions longer than we normally would. We 
need to send open positions to groups like OMWBE and others, for them to report. Pam Carter 
responded that our problem here is that for some of our positions, there may be only 3 people of 
color with the required background in the state, and we can’t force people to apply to the Board. 
Gardener asked if Board members have bills they’d like tracked to please let us know. Gardener 
asked Scott Hutsell if he had heard anything about the companion bill to HB 2146. Does it have any 
barriers in the Senate? Hutsell replied that he hasn’t heard anything.   

5) Strategic Plan Work Update, continued:  Cecilia Gardener asked the Board if she has the Board’s 
support to join this global effort, versus trying to do it on our own. Diane Pottinger replied that she 
is supportive of it. There is no way we could handle this on our own. Matt Rasmussen asked if we 
will get more opportunity to find out what our role will be before we make a final decision. 
Gardener replied that the proviso will be out next week, as far as our role in participating is 
concerned. She will contact Gary Rowe and Carl Schroeder and the other players to say that the 
Board wants to provide participation independent of the Department of Commerce, as well as some 
Board members on the team. Gardener asked who those members should be. Stan Finkelstein 
volunteered, as did Scott Hutsell and JC Baldwin. Scott Hutsell responded that he will also talk to 
Gary Rowe about this when he sees him next. If OFM is driving the bus will real input be allowed? 
Diane Pottinger stated that we need players who truly understand what the dollars are and what 
they mean. We’re all at different levels of understanding how this financing works. Gardener replied 
that she has no idea how this is going to move forward, but she would speculate that there are 
enough items in this report that they will have to break out into sub committees, which will have 
varying levels of experience. Stan Finkelstein asked, given the limited size of your staff and the 
diverse responsibilities, isn’t this the most effective way to accomplish our objective? Gardener 
agreed. Finkelstein said that he would endorse this.  
 
Lisa Wellman asked what the Public Works Board should be doing until we have money to loan out. 
If we now cede what we came up with, what are we doing? Cecilia Gardener replied that this group 
and OFM are going forward with our without us. If we can identify some similarities in our 
processes, so that the clients aren’t doing the same thing five ways, there’s something to be said for 
that. 
 
ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to table the Board’s Strategic Planning efforts, and to endorse the 

16



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of February 5, 2016 Meeting Page 9 of 9 

Board’s inclusion into the Future of Washington Infrastructure working group and proviso. Scott 
Hutsell seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hutsell, 
Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott and Wellman). 
 
Cecilia Gardener asked for confirmation that the Board is retiring the Strategic Planning Committees 
and will only maintain the standing committees. Stan Finkelstein replied that is correct. 

 
B. INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS 

1) Small Communities Initiative Quarterly Report: The Small Communities Initiative Quarterly Report is 
included in the Agenda Packet for the Board’s information only. Bubba Scott stated that it is nice 
work.  
 
Diane suggests that the agency drafting the loan application make it a requirement that the 
applicant entity has reached out and contacted all the other entities that are impacted by this 
project. In my own communities, that has not been done as well as it could be as evidenced by city 
paving projects that failed to take into account the age and condition of the pipes under the 
roadway. It can be a really simple letter or email checklist. For example, this is our scope of work; do 
you have any questions or concerns? 
 
Mary Margaret Haugen stated that TIB keeps coming up; what about CRAB (County Road 
Administration Board)? Scott Hutsell replied that in all the things that Cecilia Gardener and I have 
attended, CRAB has been there. Stan Finkelstein replied, you both have mentioned TIB and CRAB. 
Neither of those does the project, it’s the local. As a condition of getting TIB or CRAB or PWB 
funding, the local jurisdiction should demonstrate coordination with all the underground utility 
purveyors impacted by proposed projects.  

2) Board Committee Updates:  JC Baldwin reported that the Communications Committee chose not to 
meet because we weren’t meeting with legislators this time. Jerry Cummins reported that the 
Technical Assistance Committee also has not met yet. Ann Campbell reported that the Policy 
Committee has not met yet, but will be meeting prior to our next Board meeting. Cecilia Gardener 
reported that the Executive Committee met at the beginning of last month with a number of 
stakeholders, but nothing was addressed that required decisions.  
 
Cecilia Gardener identified a meeting scheduled for February 10th with the Governor’s office. Nona 
Snell, Keith Schumacher, Brian Bonlender, Mark Barkley, and Stan Finkelstein will be there to 
reestablish communications lines between the Board and the Governor’s office. We had a pre-
meeting with Charles Knutson asking why new Board members aren’t being appointed. He asked 
where the bottle neck was. We replied that it was at the Governor’s Office.  

3) Board Member Updates: There were no Board Member updates. The next meeting will be March 4, 
2016, here in Olympia. 

  
ACTION: Diane Pottinger moved to adjourn the meeting. Scott Hutsell seconded the motion. MOTION 
APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carter, Cummins, Haugen, Hutsell, Pottinger, Rasmussen, Scott, and Wellman). 
Meeting was adjourned at 12:26 pm 

17



18



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
DATE: March 10, 2016 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Cecilia Gardener, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Director Update 
 
 

December 14, 2015 through February 4, 2016 
 
Board 

 Stan Finkelstein Met with OFM  
o OFM meeting included (Dave Schumacher, Nona Snell, Myra Baldini, Brian Bonlender, Mark 

Barkley, and Cecilia Gardener).  Purpose was to discuss the future of the Public Works Board 

 Scott Hutsell met with the Attorney General’s office  – 2/26/16 
o Scott met with Kristen Mitchell and Sandra Adix to discuss AAG assignments after 

reorganization at the Attorney General’s Office.  Kristen and Sandra will be attending the 
March 18, 2016 meeting to participate in the discussion with the full Board 

 Communications Committee- March 9, 2016 – conference call (Lisa Wellman, JC Baldwin, Cecilia 
Gardener, Jacquie Andresen, and Barbara Smith) 

 On-line Training Committee, March 17, 2016 – Meet with ERWOW 

 On-line Training Subject Matter Expert Meeting – Renton College March 25, 2016 
 
Legislative  

 Meetings 
o Public Hearing on SB 5109 – Concerning infrastructure financing for local governments –

Local Revitalization Financing (LRF). March 22, 1:30 (not certain where in Commerce this 
would land).  Bill passed, sent to Governor. 

o Public Hearing on HB 5251 – Transferring DWSRF Program to DOH. March 24, 2016. Bill 
passed, sent to Governor. 

o Public Hearing on HB 2380 - Concerning the Supplemental Capital Budget, March 24, 2016 
o Work session – Future of Infrastructure group provided input and support for a proviso to 

work on the issue of the future of infrastructure financing in Washington.  Scott Hutsell and 
Cecilia Gardener provided support for the proposal. 

o Public Hearing on 2ESB 5624 and 2ESJR 8204, March 24, 2016 – Did not pass out of 
committee 

 
Internal Operations 

 Results Commerce Quarterly Target Review Meeting 

 IACC monthly standing meeting 

 DOH Transitional Meeting, Predictive Model technical assistance, PWeB technical assistance 

 Regional academies/tech teams planning meeting 

 Review of all open loans and their status  

 Application development meeting 

 Weekly PWAA Predictive Model updates 
 
Outside Meetings 

 Maximizing Resources 

 Craft 3 meeting - how local governments can better work with CDFIs 

 Mini Lean training – Steve Gorcester, TIB 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 18, 2016 
Board meeting  

19



PWB Executive Director Update 
March 10, 2016 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 Future of Washington Infrastructure – March 24, 2016 

 Creative Mitigation Media Examples of the Colville Tribes led by Heather Youckton 

 State 05-05 Work Group 

 CERB Board Meeting March 17, 2016 
 
Commerce Activity 

 Weekly LGD Management Meeting 

 Weekly LGD Legislative Update Meeting 

 Weekly Commerce Legislative Meeting 

 Weekly one-on-one with Mark Barkley 

 Bi-Weekly Unit meeting 

 LGD Connecting and Change Management 

 Weekly Budget Coordinators Meeting 

 Attendance for training “Crucial Conversations” 

 CERB/PWB Leg Report Kick-off meeting 

 
February 5, 2016 through March 4, 2016  
 
Board 

 Chair – Week of February 8
th
 (after first cutoff) 

o Meeting with Stan Finkelstein, Brian Bonlender, David Schumacher, Nona Snell, Mark 
Barkley, Cecilia RE: opening lines of communication between the Governor’s office, OFM, 
and the Board and looking to the future 

 
Legislative  

 Tentative: Senator Judy Warnick(R)(13) Ways & Means RE: HB 2146 

 Tentative: Senator Linda Evans Parlette (R)(12
th
) Ways & Means RE: HB 2146 

 Tentative: Senator Ann Rivers, (R)(18
th
) Ways & Means, Majority Whip,  RE: HB 2146 

 Tentative: Senator Pam Roach, (R)(31
st
) Rules Vice Chair RE: HB 2146 

 Tentative: Senator Maralyn Chase (D)(32
nd

) Rules RE: HB 2146 
 

Stakeholder 

 
Clients 
 
Internal Operations 

 IACC monthly standing meeting 

 DOH Transitional Meeting, Predictive Model technical assistance, PWeB technical assistance 

 Regional academies/tech teams planning meeting 
 
Outside Meetings 

 Future of Washington Infrastructure  
 
Commerce Activity 

 Weekly LGD Management Meeting 

 Weekly LGD Legislative Update Meeting 

 Weekly Commerce Legislative Meeting 

 Weekly one-on-one with Mark Barkley 

 Bi-Weekly Unit meeting 

 LGD Connecting and Change Management 

 Weekly Budget Coordinators Meeting 

 

20



 
 

21



22



 

 
DATE: February 12, 2016 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Jacquie Andresen, Programs Specialist 
 
SUBJECT: PWAA Contract Status Report 
 
 
This memo provides a quarterly status update to the Public Works Board and offers a snapshot of activities 
carried out by the PWAA Program Staff.   
 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 10/1/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
PWAA         0 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 12/31/2015 
 
PWAA       69 
 
Number of Contract Closed 10/1/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
PWAA         8 
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 10/1/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
PWAA     $6,613,664 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 4, 2016 
Board meeting  

 

23



24



 

 
 
 
DATE: February 12, 2016 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Jill Nordstrom, Section Manager 
 
SUBJECT: DWSRF Contract Status Report 
 
 
This memo provides a quarterly status update to the Public Works Board and offers a snapshot of activities 
carried out by the DWSRF Program Staff.   
 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 10/1/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
DWSRF 2 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 12/31/2015 
 
DWSRF 123 
 
Number of Contract Closed 101/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
DWSRF 5 
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 10/1/2015 – 12/31/2015 
 
 
DWSRF $11,944,160 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 4, 2016 
Board meeting  

 

25



26



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date: February 18, 2016 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Jill Nordstrom, Drinking Water Program Manager 
 
Subject: Loan Term Revision Request for Sammamish Plateau Water and Sewer District  
 DWSRF Loan, (DOH 2012-013) 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Recommend revising Loan Term to 19 years 
 
Project Description: Consolidation of Overdale Water Association 
  
Original Loan Amount: $1,126,697 
    
Project Status:   
The project is 100% complete.  Sammamish Plateau Water and Sewer District will be making their first 
loan repayment October 1, 2016.   
 
History:  
When Sammamish Plateau Water & Sewer District applied to the DWSRF program, they requested a 
15-year repayment term. Most DWSRF contracts have a 20-year repayment term with an additional 
four-year deferral period to complete the project (which makes a total of 24-year term).  At contract 
execution, this contract was set up for a total of 15 years, without the four-year deferral period.  The 
District is requesting the term of the contract be extended to 19 years, to incorporate the full 15-year 
payback.  
 
Action: 
Revise the Loan Term from 15 years to 19 years to include the four-year deferral period for  
DM12-952-111, (DOH 2012-013). 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 4, 2016 
 Board Meeting 

27



28



Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
 
 
DATE:  March 7, 2016 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Janet Cherry & Mike Copeland, Office of Drinking Water, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

(DWSRF) Program 
 
SUBJECT: 2016 DWSRF Recommended Funding List, Third List for PWB Review 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff respectfully requests the following actions from the Public Works Board (PWB): 
 

1. Individual confirmation of recusal status: 
 
 

Board Member Recusal (No, or Applicant Name) 

Stan Finkelstein  

Janet (JC) Baldwin  

Pam Carter  

The Honorable Jerry Cummins  

Mary Margaret Haugen  

Scott Hutsell  

Diane Pottinger  

Matthew Rasmussen  

Mark (Bubba) Scott  

Lisa Wellman  

 
 

2. Approval of the DWSRF list of projects provided in handout.  
 

PWB and Department of Health (DOH) staff recommend Board approval of the projects identified in 
Attachment A of the handout. Attachment A includes seven (7) projects for PWB consideration: 
 

 City of Ilwaco Sahalee Subdivision Distribution Improvements revised cost.  PWB approved this 
project for $752,450 in February.  However, City of Ilwaco requested the preconstruction design 
costs be included in the total loan amount instead of assuming the preconstruction loan 
submitted and awarded last year.  The construction loan amount has been revised to $868,095 to 
include all preconstruction design costs and the City will no longer be receiving a preconstruction 
loan for these activities and associated costs. 
 

 Tulalip Shores Beach Association Distribution System Replacement project. 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

March 18, 2016 
Board meeting  

 

29



Page 2 of 2 

 Greater Bar Water District.  PWB approved this project in February for a 24-year term loan, but 
Greater Bar Water District has requested a 30-year loan repayment after the project is 
completed.  Because the system is being granted subsidy, Greater Bar has up to four years to 
complete the project and loan repayments are deferred during this four-year period.     

 

 City of Auburn Coal Creek Springs Transmission Main Replacement.  PWB approved this project 
in December, but the City has since requested a loam term of 10 years. 

 

 Windolph Association Water System Replacement.  PWB approved this project in February, but 
DOH has since awarded subsidy to this project based on Windolph’s affordability index.  Also, 
the loan amount has been modified to reflect the most current project estimate provided by the 
applicant. 

 

 City of Brewster Reservoir Replacement.  PWB approved this project in February, but the interest 
rate has since been reduced to 1.0% based on Brewster’s affordability index. 

 

 Christ Community Fellowship New Source Well.  PWB approved this project in February as a 
consolidation project and main extension, with City of College Place to serve Christ Community 
Fellowship.  City of College Place recently provided a cost estimate to Christ Community Church 
for the connection; the Church declined to connect to City of College Place due to costs.  The 
Church will continue with its project to drill a new well as submitted to DOH.  Revised project 
costs are presented in Attachment A. 

 
While staff feels confident that these projects are ready to proceed to contract, there may be 
modifications to the listed applications as staff finalizes project scopes and budgets with applicants.  We 
will inform the Board if any of the interest rates or loan terms change during the final stages of this 
process. 

 
BACKGROUND  
 
DOH received thirty-six (36) applications requesting more than $56.54 million in funding.  Of the thirty-six (36) 
loan applications received, three (3) were deemed ineligible due to lack of required planning documents 
(Attachment D).  The remaining thirty-three (33) eligible applications are under review by DOH and the 
requested funding in these applications is $53.98 million, within the $60 million allocated this year for 
construction project funding.  The funding amount available for the 2016 DWSRF construction loan funding 
cycle was revised from $65 million to approximately $60 million by DOH upon further review of loan repayment 
and predictive model information.  Twenty-one (21) projects in Attachment C were approved at the December 
PWB meeting, for a total of $44.78 million.  An additional fifteen (15) projects in Attachment B were approved by 
PWB at the February PWB meeting.  Please note Attachment B includes nine (9) projects received by DOH as 
part of the 2016 DWSRF construction loan application cycle plus six (6) additional projects as a result of 
additional outreach by DOH.     
 
As shown in Attachment E, a total of three (3) applications remain:   
 

 The Keller Lane/Lakeview Subdivision water system project did not pass underwriting.   

 Northport remains under review by DOH and may be presented for PWB consideration at a future 
meeting.   

 The City of Sequim has stated they no longer wish to pursue the reservoir project and have withdrawn 
from the process. 
 

30



A. DWSRF Applicants for PWB review March 18, 2016

DWSRF
$60 Million Available (approximate)

$3,922,200 to $5,883,300 Subsidy Available

*Subsidy (Loan Forgiveness) is awarded to high AI communities and those consolidating systems

Applic
ant

Applic
ant

Pro
je

ct
Nam

e

County

Sco
re

Lo
an

Am
ount

Lo
an

Fe
e

%

Lo
an

Fe
e

Tota
l L

oan
Am

ount

Subsid
y %

Subsid
y @

Pro
je

ct

Com
ple

tio
n

In
te

re
st

Rate

Term
in

Years

Specia
l Contr

act

Conditi
ons

Com
m

unity
/N

onco
m

m
unity

2015-042 City of Ilwaco

Sahalee Subdivision

Distribution System

Improvements PACIFIC 57 $ 859,500.00 1% $ 8,595.00 $ 868,095.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-044

Tulalip Shores Beach

Association

Tulalip Shores Distribution

System Replacement

SNOHOMI

SH 56 $ 909,436.00 0% $ - $ 909,436.00 30% 272,830.80$ 1.0% 24 n/a Comm

2011-025 Greater Bar Water District

Compliance and Consolidation

Project- add'l construction

money for DM11-952-013

($2,722,800 with 50% subsidy) DOUGLAS $ 200,000.00 0% $ - $ 200,000.00 50% 100,000.00$ 1.0% 34

Credit

Memo-

execute

new

contract Comm

2015-028 City of Auburn

Coal Creek Springs

Transmission Main

Replacement KING 59 $ 1,340,000.00 1% $ 13,400.00 $ 1,353,400.00 0% -$ 1.5% 10 n/a Comm

2015-014 Windolph Association

Windolph Water System

Replacement THURSTON 135 $ 364,600.00 0% $ - $ 364,600.00 30% 109,380.00$ 1.0% 20

Credit

Memo Comm

2015-048 City of Brewster

Brewster Reservoir

Replacement

OKANOGA

N 55 $ 1,255,000.00 0% $ - $ 1,255,000.00 0% -$ 1.0% 20 n/a Comm

2015-026 Christ Community Fellowship New Source Well

WALLA

WALLA 127 $ 128,650.00 1% $ 1,286.50 $ 129,936.50 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a NTNC

TOTAL $ 5,057,186.00 $ 23,281.50 $ 5,080,467.50 $ 482,210.80

31



B. DWSRF Applicants approved by PWB on February 5, 2016

Applic
ant

Applic
ant

Pro
je

ct
Nam

e

County

Sco
re

Lo
an

Am
ount

Lo
an

Fe
e

%

Lo
an

Fe
e

Tota
l L

oan
Am

ount

Subsid
y %

Subsid
y @

Pro
je

ct

Com
ple

tio
n

In
te

re
st

Rate

Term
in

Years

Specia
l Contr

act

Conditi
ons

Com
m

unity
/N

onco
m

m
unity

2015-014 Windolph Association

Windolph Water System

Replacement

THURSTO

N 135 $ 387,000.00 1% $ 3,870.00 $ 390,870.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20

Credit

Memo Comm

2015-049 City of Port Townsend

City of Port Townsend

Mandated LT2ESWTR Water

Treatment Facility

JEFFERSO

N 185 $ 1,200,000.00 1% $ 12,000.00 $ 1,212,000.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-026

College Place/ Christ

Community Fellowship New Source Well

WALLA

WALLA 127 $ 2,286,500.00 0% $ - $ 2,286,500.00 Comm

2015-011 Acme Water District #18 Arsenic Removal Project

WHATCO

M 159 $ 316,250.00 1% $ 3,162.50 $ 319,412.50 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-007 City of Pomeroy

Pomeroy Sunny Side Booster

Pump Station & Water Main

Replacement GARFIELD 67 $ 389,828.00 1% $ 3,898.28 $ 393,726.28 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-042 City of Ilwaco

Sahalee Subdivision

Distribution System

Improvements PACIFIC 57 $ 745,000.00 1% $ 7,450.00 $ 752,450.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-048 City of Brewster

Brewster Reservoir

Replacement

OKANOGA

N 55 $ 1,255,000.00 0% $ - $ 1,255,000.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-052 City of Rockford Rockford Well #4 Replacement ProjectSPOKANE 55 $ 510,400.00 1% $ 5,104.00 $ 515,504.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-046

Honeymoon Bay Vista Water

Association

HBVWA Main Line

Replacement; Reservoir Fill

Alteration ISLAND 49 $ 222,000.00 1% $ 2,220.00 $ 224,220.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-056

Beacon Hill Water and Sewer

District

Hillside Pump Station

Reconstruction COWLITZ 56 $ 850,000.00 1% $ 8,500.00 $ 858,500.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-055 City of Ephrata

Basin Street Water Main

Replacement GRANT 50 $ 2,960,000.00 1% $ 29,600.00 $ 2,989,600.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2013-060 Bayview Beach Water District

Main Replacement Shore &

McDonald- add'l construciton

money for DM13-952-154

($499,950, 0 subsidy) ISLAND $ 260,000.00 1% $ 2,600.00 $ 262,600.00 0% -$

Amend

exist

contract Comm

2011-025 Greater Bar Water District

Compliance and Consolidation

Project- add'l construction

money for DM11-952-013

($2,722,800 with 50% subsidy) DOUGLAS $ 200,000.00 0% $ - $ 200,000.00 50% 100,000.00$ 1.0% 24

Credit

Memo-

execute

new

contract Comm

32



2012-063 Thurston PUD

Lew's 81 St Consolidation -

add'l construction money for

DM12-952-113 ($370,725 with

50% subsidy) Thurston $ 185,252.00 0% $ 185,252.00 50% 92,626.00$ 1.0% 24

Execute

new

contract Comm

2013F-028 City of Sumner

Central Well- add'l

construction money fro DM13-

952-178 ($5,518,135, 0

subsidy) PIERCE $ 300,000.00 1% $ 3,000.00 $ 303,000.00 0% -$

Amend

exist

contract Comm

12,067,230.00$ 81,404.78$ 12,148,634.78$ -$

33



C. DWSRF Applicants approved by PWB on December 11, 2015

DOH
#

Applic
ant

Pro
je

ct
Nam

e

County

Sco
re

Lo
an

Am
ount

Lo
an

Fe
e

%

Lo
an

Fe
e

Tota
l L

oan
Am

ount

Subsid
y %

Subsid
y @

Pro
je

ct

Com
ple

tio
n

In
te

re
st

Rate

Term
in

Years

Specia
l Contra

ct

Conditi
ons

Com
m

unity
/N

on

Com
m

unity

2015-012 City of Olympia

McAllister Wellfield Corrosion

Control Facility

THURSTO

N 156 $ 4,018,448.00 1% $ 40,184.48 $ 4,058,632.48 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-032 City of Enumclaw 2 MG Reservoir Replacement KING 77 $ 2,255,563.00 1% $ 22,555.63 $ 2,278,118.63 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-050 City of Camas

Camas Surface Water

Transmission Main CLARK 48 $ 3,400,000.00 1% $ 34,000.00 $ 3,434,000.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-054 City of Camas Camas Slow Sand Filter CLARK 65 $ 2,600,000.00 0% $ - $ 2,600,000.00 50% 1,300,000.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a Comm

2015-029 City of Zillah Source Well Improvements YAKIMA 64 $ 2,208,000.00 1% $ 22,080.00 $ 2,230,080.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-034 City of Snohomish

Aldercrest Water Users

Association - Cypress Lane

Water Main Extension

SNOHOMI

SH 62 $ 161,470.00 0% $ - $ 161,470.00 50% 80,735.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a Comm

2015-047 City of Kelso

Minor Road Reservoir

Replacement and Transmission

Main COWLITZ 62 $ 4,485,000.00 1% $ 44,850.00 $ 4,529,850.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-015

Skamania County Public

Utility District #1

New Carson Water System

Reservoir

SKAMANI

A 61 $ 1,796,578.00 1% $ 17,965.78 $ 1,814,543.78 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-041 City of Morton Reservoir No. 1 Replacement LEWIS 61 $ 1,300,000.00 1% $ 13,000.00 $ 1,313,000.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-009

Kitsap Public Utility District

#1 Crystal Springs Consolidation KITSAP 60 $ 320,868.00 0% $ - $ 320,868.00 50% 160,434.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a Comm

2015-028 City of Auburn

Coal Creek Springs

Transmission Main

Replacement KING 59 $ 1,340,000.00 1% $ 13,400.00 $ 1,353,400.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-051 City of Colville

Colville Reservoir #3

Replacement STEVENS 59 $ 2,278,864.00 1% $ 22,788.64 $ 2,301,652.64 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-021 City of Sequim

Sunnyside Water Main

Replacement - Maple St. to Fir

St. CLALLAM 55 $ 634,900.00 1% $ 6,349.00 $ 641,249.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-019 Town of Concrete

Town of Concrete Water

System Improvements SKAGIT 54 $ 1,119,111.00 1% $ 11,191.11 $ 1,130,302.11 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-020 City of Anacortes

Blue Herron Circle 3MG

Reservoir Rehabilitation SKAGIT 52 $ 4,925,500.00 1% $ 49,255.00 $ 4,974,755.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-022 City of Sequim

5th and McCurdy Booster

Pump Station Improvements CLALLAM 50 $ 724,850.00 1% $ 7,248.50 $ 732,098.50 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-027 City of Olympia Fones Rd Booster Pump Station

THURSTO

N 50 $ 1,912,853.00 1% $ 19,128.53 $ 1,931,981.53 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-031 City of Kennewick

Kennewick/Elliot Lake Water

System Consolidation BENTON 50 $ 1,097,342.00 0% $ - $ 1,097,342.00 50% 548,671.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a Comm

2015-030 City of Selah

Palm Park Booster Station and

Well No. 7 Improvements YAKIMA 47 $ 1,210,000.00 1% $ 12,100.00 $ 1,222,100.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

2015-043 City of Kettle Falls

BNSF/Highway 395 Water Main

Replacement STEVENS 45 $ 587,000.00 1% $ 5,870.00 $ 592,870.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm 34



2015-025 Seattle Public Utilities Morse Lake Pump Plant King 80 $ 6,000,000.00 1% $ 60,000.00 $ 6,060,000.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a Comm

44,376,347.00$ 401,966.67$ 44,778,313.67$ 2,089,840.00$

35



D. DWSRF Applicants that were ineligible due to lack of planning documents

Applic
ant

Applic
ant

Pro
je

ct
Nam

e

County

Sco
re

Lo
an

Am
ount

Lo
an

Fe
e

%

Lo
an

Fe
e

Tota
l L

oan
Am

ount

note
s

Com
m

unity
/N

on

Com
m

unity

2015-018

King County Water District

No. 90

West Lake Kathleen Water

Main Improvement Project KING Ineligible$ 1,816,500.00 1% $ 18,165.00 $ 1,834,665.00

Recom

mende

d

coming

in for

precon

structi Comm

2015-008 Green Ridge HOA Water system improvements Spokane Ineligible 574,480 1% 5745 580,225

Recom

mende

d

consoli

dation

with

Liberty

Lake

Water

and

Sewer Comm

2015-013 City of Black Diamond

Downtown AC water main

replacement and looping King Ineligible 143,564 1% 1435 145,000

Recom

mende

d

coming

in for

precon

structi

on

loan Comm

2,534,544.00$ 25,345.00$ 2,559,890.00$

36



E. Remaining DWSRF Applicants and Status

Applic
ant

Applic
ant

Pro
je

ct
Nam

e

County

Sco
re

Lo
an

Am
ount

Lo
an

Fe
e

%

Lo
an

Fe
e

Tota
l L

oan
Am

ount

Subsid
y

%

Subsid
y

@
Pro

je
ct

Com
ple

tio
n

In
te

re
st

Rate

Term
in

Years

Specia
l Contra

ct

Conditi
ons

Note
s

2015-045

Keller Lane Property Owners

Association,

owners/operators of the

Lakeview Subdivision Water

System

Water Quality Improvements

Project LINCOLN 167 $ 769,000.00 0% $ - $ 769,000.00 50% 384,500.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a

Did not

pass

underwrit

ing

2015-016 Town of Northport Well Improvements Project STEVENS 59 $ 682,900.00 0% $ - $ 682,900.00 30% 204,870.00$ 1.0% 24 n/a

need

more info

2015-023 City of Sequim

Roof of 500,000-Gallon

Reservoir CLALLAM 55 $ 225,000.00 1% $ 2,250.00 $ 227,250.00 0% -$ 1.5% 20 n/a

City

withdrew

37



38


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



